
  

 13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Board Members in Attendance:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Members in Attendance:   
 
 
 
                            
 
 
Members of the Public in Attendance:                  
 
                                                                             
 
 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman R. Starodoj called the meeting to order at 7:00pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
 
 Approval of Minutes from January 5, 2022 & December 15, 2022 
 
Motion by N. Talbot to approve the January 5, 2022, meeting minutes as submitted with one correction to the 
name of Brian Winslow. Seconded by E. Murphy. Discussion: None 
 
 

R. Starodoj  Aye 
N. Talbot  Aye 
E. Murphy  Aye 

Rick Starodoj Chair 
Nancy Talbot Vice Chair 
Ken Crosby  
Ed Murphy  
Chris DiMarzio  
Elizabeth 
Hancock 

Alternate 

Rob Watchilla PCD Department Director 
Kristen Jacobsen PCD Dept. Admin. Assistant 
Anna Marques Building Commissioner, Zoning 

Enforcement Officer 

Donald Frydryk, 
Sherman & Frydryk 

Sadie Milner 

Karen Hubaz, 
Bond Construction 

 

Kathleen Knight  
Jennifer Knight  

TOWN OF WARE 
Planning & Community Development 

126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082 
t. 413.967.9648 ext. 120 

Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes from 

Thursday, January 19, 2023 
Selectboard Meeting Room 

126 Main Street, Ware MA 01082 
 
 

 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 1/19/2023, Page 2 
 

K. Crosby  Aye 
C. DiMarzio  Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

  
 

 
 
 
Motion by N. Talbot to approve the December 15, 2022, meeting minutes with corrections to pg. 11. And areas 
where E. Murphy was marked as absent. Seconded by E. Murphy. Discussion: None 
 
 

R. Starodoj  Aye 
N. Talbot  Aye 
E. Murphy  Aye 
K. Crosby  Abstain 
C. DiMarzio  Aye 

Four in favor. One 
Abstention Approved 

4/0/1. 

 
 
 

 
 
Public Hearing 
 
7:05pm: SP-2022-10 (Bond Construction Corporation) [CONTINUED] 
Applicant is requesting a Special Permit to remove earth materials at 219 Babcock Tavern Road. 
Deeded in the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds, Book 12833, Page 207, and Book 07177, Page 
314. Assessor’s Parcel 4-0-14 & 4-14-2. Zoned: Rural Residential (RR). 
 
 
R. Starodoj reopened the Public Hearing 
 
E. Hancock recused herself. 
 
D. Frydryk presented the revised plans for the earth removal project at 219 Babcock Tavern Road. 
These revisions can be found on pages 7 & 8 of the meeting packet. 

• Updated well measurements on the four monitoring wells. 
• Limit of work changed on the southerly side to maintain a 50-foot offset from the property line. 
• Estimated volume of removal as been reduced to 189,000 cubic yards. 
• The line type for the limit of work has been changed and labeled. 
• Erosion control has been proposed on the easterly side and shown on plans. 
• Four cross sections have been included. 
• The well and septic for 240 Babcock Tavern Rd has been included. 
• The home of the southerly abutter has been added based on MassGIS data (no record of the well and 

septic for that property could be found) 
• Additional topography has been added (outside the limit of work) 
• The applicant proposes to fuel on site equipment at the northerly end of the proposed limit of work. 
• For sites that do not have stormwater leaving the site to waters of the USA, no EPA filings are necessary. If 

needed the applicant will prepare and submit the required filing. 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 1/19/2023, Page 3 
 

 
K. Crosby inquired about the grading on the road. The board and D. Frydryk discussed the grading and 
the refueling of machinery. The only refueling that would be done on site would be  the machinery and 
not the trucks used to haul. 
 
K. Crosby asked about the wells. D. Frydryk answered that wells 1,2,& 3 were dry. K. Crosby and K. 
Hubaz discussed the groundwater found in well 4. 
 
R. Watchilla inquired as to the type of permanent markers that would be used to delineate the project 
boundary. K. Hubaz answered that once the project gets within 100’ of the boundary permanent pins 
would be installed and would be flagged until that time. 
 
R. Starodoj asked if any board members had further questions and when none arose opened up questions to the 
audience. 
 
E. Hancock spoke addressing the SWPPP*, the cease-and-desist order which was issued 9/19/19, rescinded on 
9/23/19. R. Starodoj spoke saying that as long as the trees weren’t being stumped it was not disturbing the land 
and would look at the cutting of trees differently from stumping it out. E. Hancock and the board discussed when a 
SWPPP would be called for.  The board D. Frydryk discussed that they do not anticipate storm water leaving the 
site, if they do need to file an SWPPP they will do so. K. Hubaz spoke stating she would file any paperwork she 
needed to regarding any environmental issues. K. Hubaz stated she had met with a member of the Conservation 
Commission at the site and the individual did not say there was any additional paperwork they needed to file. R. 
Watchilla clarified that K. Hubaz was referring to Conservation Agent J. Prenosil. E. Hancock and D. Frydryk 
discussed the request made by J. Prenosil to add the wetlands area onto the plans. 
 
E. Hancock discussed the Massachusetts Erosion Control Guidelines for Urban Planners*. R. Starodoj discussed his 
thoughts on the tree removal of the area. K. Hubaz discussed the trees saying they were pine trees on sandy soil 
and even though she didn’t have anything to do with the initial tree removal it was a safety issue as the trees did 
not have large root balls. She went on to say they are not stripping the entire area only stripping and stumping the 
areas they are going to mine. R. Starodoj spoke about the current brush growth and how it helps stabilize the soil. 
C. DiMarzio stated if it weren’t an earth removal permit they would have to remove the trees as they so choose and 
would have the right to harvest the natural resource on their property. K. Knight spoke of having a tree fall one her 
barn and another hit the side of the garage. Comments from her insurance agent prompted her to remove the 
trees. R. Starodoj discussed her reasons for removing the trees. E. Hancock spoke of a site walk performed on the 
property in October 2019*.  
 
E. Hancock spoke about the trees being used as a marker between the proposed phase II and phase III project 
areas*.  R. Starodoj added that although the trees were trimmed down the roots and stumps are still there and are 
an indicator of where the line is. E. Hancock and R. Starodoj discussed the trimming down of the trees, R. Starodoj 
said there was no way of preventing them from taking trees down.  
 
E. Hancock spoke about an email from 5/5/2020* and a Planning Board Meeting 8/6/2020* R. Starodoj stated he 
believed that was rescinded. A. Marques spoke stating a tree was being used as a visual reference point and they 
have pictures of in their records. As far as the access road it was not for the removal but to get to the higher 
elevation. E. Hancock stated she was not made aware of this. A. Marques said she did provide the information to 
whomever requested it. 
 
E. Hancock spoke regarding Bond Construction being noted as the applicant on the Special Permit Application and 
cited and email from 10/14/2020* 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 1/19/2023, Page 4 
 

E. Hancock discussed an email from town consul which said the Planning Board vote was invalid and the only 
person who can decide that are the owners of the property.  The board and E. Hancock discussed the nature of the 
applicant being Bond Construction on behalf of the property owner.  R. Watchilla stated K. Knight did submit a new 
landowner authorization form including both 219 and 240 Babcock Tavern Road and authorizing Bond as an 
applicant. R. Starodoj proposed of having the Kulas Life Estate as the Applicant (and Bond Construction). E. 
Hancock said that should satisfy the matter. The board and E. Hancock discussed the permit staying with the land 
and its control by the owner. 
 
 
E. Hancock discussed the need to close out Phase II. The board and K. Hubaz spoke about how that portion is has 
piles of loam there and the trucks are using it to turn around and the areas of banking have had loam spread. 
 
K. Hubaz and K. Crosby discussed the volume being carried by the trucks and the measurements of weight. 
 
E. Hancock spoke about a comment made by J. Kusnierz during a site walk of the property after she had voiced her 
concerns. J. Kusnirez suggested she sell her home. E. Hancock discussed the drop in property value of homes 
abutting gravel removal pits.* 
 
J. Knight and R. Starodoj discussed the purpose of the gravel removal with J. Knight saying its ultimate purpose 
was to make the farmland more profitable. R. Starodoj questioned if that was the intent. 
  
E. Hancock spoke of comments made by K. Hubaz during the 12/1/22 Planning Board Meeting*. E. Hancock 
questioned the duration of the project and sought clarification on the timeline. C. DiMarzio spoke about the earth 
removal permit and if they can be compliant with the conditions. He went on to discuss how the ultimate use of a 
property has not been asked of other earth removal permit holders  and is not a concern.  R. Starodoj spoke of the 
concerns of others regarding the use of the land, he further discussed the financial toll running a farm takes and 
what it costs to maintain a property of that nature. R. Starodoj discussed that the money coming from the gravel 
operation is a way to maintain property in an open space and encourages it not to be developed. R. Starodoj asked 
what other type of use E. Hancock would like to see on that property. E. Hancock questioned what Mrs. Knight 
wanted from the project. R. Starodoj responded saying Bond is speaking for Mrs. Knight and they are asking for 
gravel removal to have a field at the specified level.  E. Hancock discussed the timeline of the project and asked if 
Mrs. Knight wanted to wait 15+ years to have the project completed. R. Starodoj said it would be based on the 
market for the gravel E. Hancock discussed the history of the earth removal on her father’s property and her 
concerns about the future of the project. R. Starodoj spoke saying he could not speak to what could happen in the 
future, the regulations and tools in place leaves it to future board members and control officers to control that.  C. 
DiMarzio spoke about the bonding and protections in place to protect against the issues she has mentioned. 
 
C. DiMarzio sought clarification on E. Hancock’s wishes.  He discussed the project and that he appreciates her 
concerns and that the board was acting upon a permit for a commercial gravel pit operation and that is their 
primary focus. R. Starodoj stated there is not a gravel permit currently issued that has a final timeline.  C. DiMarzio 
said as they move forward he would be interested to hear what Hancock’s concerns are regarding buffering, hours 
of operation or things of that nature. E. Hancock stated her primary desire is to have a timeline for the project, to 
have no work done on the weekends. K. Hubaz added that they haven’t removed gravel on the weekends and 
discussed that they do refuel and do maintenance on the equipment during that time if necessary and possibly 
grading.  
 
E. Hancock stated it was mostly the beeping noise and inquired if it could be turned off. K. Hubaz answered that 
they are mandated to have the back up alarms. R. Starodoj stated they can put it as a condition that they not 
operate machines with them during certain hours. K. Crosby asked if the material was being processed onside. K. 
Hubaz answered that they only screen the material there. 
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 1/19/2023, Page 5 
 

  N. Tabot asked for any remaining comments from E. Hancock. E. Hancock inquired about limiting the hours of 
operation. The board and K.Hubaz discussed the potential hours, K.Hubaz said the final truck leaves by 3pm and 
the first arrives by 7am. E. Hancock discussed the noise produced by the trucks and would prefer to have them 
from 8am-4pm. The board discussed thre hours of 7am-4pm M-F. E. Hancock asked for some screening at the 
buffer zone and asked for trees to be planted. K.Knight said some of the remaining trees are 12’ tall.  The board 
discussed the conditions of the buffer zone. 
 
The board and K. Hubaz discussed the equipment there and where the material is processed and the timeframe of 
selling it. 
 
E. Hancock read a statement from her notes (page 5 2nd paragraph) * 
 
C. DiMarzio discussed the gravel operation near Beaver Lake. 
 
R. Starodoj & K. Crosby asked if there were new unheard points to be discussed. 
 
E. Hancock read a statement about free speech* 
 
R. Starodoj stated what happened before is not relevant to this permit. E. Hancock disagreed and continued 
reading her statement. E. Hancock sought to read the history of the project. R. Starodoj declined stating it did not 
concern this permit and is not new information. R. Starodoj stated it is not Phase III it is a gravel removal permit. C. 
DiMarzio spoke saying if there was proof of negligence via police records that could be presented.  R. Watchilla 
clarified that regulations applied to Phase II do not apply now.  
 
E.Hancock spoke about the invalidity of the vote the board took in 2012. E. Hancock stated the board was lied to. 
K. Knight stated the issues were under her sisters ownership and she has since passed away. E. Hancock discussed 
issued the Planning Board in the past. C. DiMarzio discussed how this was not the appropriate arena for that 
conversation.   
 
E.Hancock asked for an endpoint. R. Starodoj stated that it is as the market allows. The board can discuss that and 
make it a condition.  
 
J.Knight asked as part of the Special Permit if they needed to do a checking yearly. R. Starodoj confirmed they 
would. 
 
 
 
 
R. Starodoj and K. Crosby discussed the possibility of  defining an endpoint and that it seemed unreasonable. 
 
E. Hancock stated it would need to come out of 61A. R. Starodoj stated that was outside of their purview. 
 
 
 Motion made by E. Murphy to close the Public hearing of SP-2022-10 (Bond Construction Corporation).  
Seconded C. DiMarzio. Discussion: C. DiMarzio spoke with K.Hubaz asking if they would agree not to process 
material at the site. K.Hubaz confirmed that they would.   E. Hancock requested that latitude and longitude be 
added. 
 
 
 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 1/19/2023, Page 6 
 

E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

 
 

 
*Please see appendix for further information 
 
Motion made by N.Talbot to table discussion of Subdivision Regulations until the next meeting.  Seconded E. 
Murphy. Discussion: None 
 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 
E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

 
 

 
 
 
Town Planner Update 
 
The hospital meeting is meeting to Wednesday 1/25/23  
 
The sign is not powered and operational. A consultant will return in the spring to touch up a few things. 
 
Town awarded a FEMA hazard mitigation grant. 
 
Sign bases have arrived for the pedestrian blinker signs, awaiting the signs 
 
R. Starodoj inquired about progress on battery storage. R. Watchilla said they are continuing to work with PVPC.  
 
R. Starodoj and the board discussed hotel zoning. 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion made by N.Talbot to ADJOURN at 8:50pm. Seconded by E. Murphy. Discussion: none            
 

R. Starodoj Aye 
N. Talbot Aye 
E. Murphy Aye 
K. Crosby Aye 
C. DiMarzio Aye 

All in favor. Approved 
5/0/0. 

 
 




















	1-19-23 minutes
	13
	TOWN OF WARE

	E. Hancock docs
	883f77ac-b68e-4083-b4b5-bea218ad65d1.pdf
	1-19-23 minutes
	13
	TOWN OF WARE

	E. Hancock docs


